STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Mary Ann Cooney FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Associate Commaissioner

January 13, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION | CD@%? \j ]C wé J

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services,
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services to amend an agreement with Lakes Region Mental
Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health, 111 Church Street, Laconia NH 03246
(vendor code 154480-B001), by increasing the price limitation by $38,837 from $38,659 to
$77,496 and extending the contract completion date from January 31, 2014 to January 31,
2015. This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
January 16, 2013 (Item #26) and subsequently amended by an agreement approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on May 15, 2013 (ltem #27).

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal
Years 2014 and 2015, with the ability to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years
through the budget office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-958310-7176 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, DCBCS BHHS, HOUSING — SHELTER PROGRAMS

Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Modified (Decreased) Modified
Year Class/Object Class Title Budget Amount Budget

2013 102-500731 Contracts for program services $22,552.00 $ 0.00 $ 22,552.00

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAMS

Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Modified (Decreased) Modified
Year Class/Object Class Title Budget Amount Budget
2014 102-500731 Contracts for program services $ 0.00 $22,603.00 $ 22,603.00

2015 102-500731 Contracts for program services $ 16,107.00 $ 16,234.00 $ 32,341.00

Totals $ 38,659.00 $ 38,837.00 $ 77,496.00



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This agreement provides funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development Supportive Housing Demonstration, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped
Homeless program. The amendment is needed due to changes in the HUD allocated budget for
this program. The grant is a project under the Continuum of Care annual application process
submitted for the State of New Hampshire. The US Department of Housing and Urban
Development scores the applications and determines the amount of funding sub recipients will
receive.

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health is one of
thirteen New Hampshire agencies that received a competitive award. The funds will be used to
pay for operations of Summer Street Residence, 13 Summer Street, Laconia, NH 03246.
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health will provide
permanent housing for seven (7) or more individuals at this facility. A comprehensive
supportive services network will be provided to meet housing needs for handicapped individuals
and to promote the ability of participants to live more independently. Performance is monitored
through the required submission of quarterly and annual progress reports regarding the
performance of the program and the individuals it serves as well as ongoing data reporting on
the Homeless Management Information System.

This funding supports the Genesis Summer Street Permanent Housing Program, which
provides permanent housing for seven or more individuals. Should the Governor and Executive
Council not approve this request, the project may cease operations, causing a minimum of
seven individuals to become homeless. Additionally, one full-time staff person and one half-
time staff person at this private non-profit agency may become unemployed.

Areas Served: Belknap and Grafton Counties
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Ahn Cooney
gCiate Commissioner

Approved by: /
AS '

Nicholas A. Toumpas

- - Q__-———————/
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



State of Nefo Hampshire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that THE LAKES REGION MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed July 14, 1969. 1 further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 24™ day of April A.D. 2013

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Filed
Date Filed: 12/31/2009
Effective Date: 05/26/2010
Business ID: 348744

State of New Hampshire William M. Gardner
' : Secretary of State
Department of State yof stat

Corporations Division
~ 107 North Main Street
Concord, N.H. 03301-4989
' 603-271-3244

APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF TRADE NAME
First Notice

GENESIS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH _ Business ID#: 348744

111 Church Street Expiration Date: 05/26/2010
-Laconia, NH 03246 ' _ Filing Fee: $50.00

e . . . - - - 2~ IS )
= EEIE R aicin- —apa e g = a = B 8 T =

gy TSR Y e e P TR

D Check here if business address has changed and indicate change below.

# Street / PO BOX City / Town © Slate Zip

[J Check here if mailing address has changed and indicate change below.

# Street/ PO BOX City / Town State : Zip

The following registrant(s) is / are doing business under the above listed Trade Name.
You must contact this office if there is a change in Registrants:

Registered By No. & Street City / Town State Zip
THE LAKES REGION 111 CHURCH ST LLACONIA NH 03246
MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER, INC

(J Check here if re_g-istrant address has changed and indicate change below.

" Registrant néw address # Strésl7 POBOX = City / Town - T T - State : - Zip-

Nature of Business: BEHAVIORAL/MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

Slgned (Must be sngned by all listed Reglstrants Note business entities must include title for

Disclaimer: All documents filed with the Corporate Division become public records and will be available
for public inspection in either tanglble or electromc form - i

State of New Hampshire
Form TN 3 - Application for Reregistration of Trade Name 1 Page(s)

UII VTN




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Susan Stearns, President , do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of two resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Agency duly held on December, 19, 2013:

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 20 day of December, 2013.
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Margaret M. Pritchard is the duly elected ___Executive Director

of the Agency. %
/ %M ( i(?/%é@

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

\

County oPON 8 revna S

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

BSQ san L .g;TE,fAR NS

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

day of « o~ -, 20 \k{ .

{Notary Public/Justice of We}

SRIONT ATIN DT AL
IMOTARY BEAL;

Zommission Expires:\d\«ul\ \ S Jdo K

O

IANE GEDNEY, Notary Public
Hy%mm Expires July 10,2018

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



New Hampshire Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment 2 to the Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Laconia Contract

This first Amendment to the Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Laconia contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 2" dated this December 3d day of 2013, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State” or "Department”) and Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”), a non-profit organization with a place of business at 111
Church Street, Laconia, NH.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 16", 2013, and amended by an agreement (Amendment 1 to the Contract) approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on May 15, 2013, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend this agreement by
written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS the HUD grant allows for an extension in contract period;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1) Amendment and modification of P-37 “Agreement”;

a) Change Completion Date in Block 1.7 to read January 31, 2015
b) Change Price Limitation in Block 1.8 to read $77,496

2) Amendment and modification of Exhibit A
a) IV.A.replace “$38,659" with “$38,659 for SFY14 and $38,837 for SFY15”
b) IV.A1. replace “$37,322" with “$37,322 for SFY14 and $37,678 for SFY15”
c) IV.A2 replace “$1,337" with “$1,337 for SFY14 and $1,159 for SFY15”

3) Amendment and modification of Exhibit B
a) Replace Amount “$38,659” with “$38,659 for SFY14 and $38,837 for SFY15”
b) 4.1 replace "$38,659" with “$38,659 for SFY14 and $38,837 for SFY15”

CA/DHHS/100213 Amendment #1
Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
partment of Health and Hum§

HEIE \

Date Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Lakes Region Mental Health, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health

/3 /30 /90)3 a4 w%ﬁh ene/
Date Nar/ne: Margaref V(L .pvﬁ/zaro/
Title: 5X Lw/‘rbcbv e et

Acknowledgement:

State of NH , County of y on O\ , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
persan whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

) 2

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

TERESA M, POTTER-BROWN, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 9, 2014

CA/DHHS/100213 Amendment #1
Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

[-1{-11 /@}mf_\ﬂc%

Date Name: Ry§: Wianf
Title: it ¢y Gewer~|

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
CA/DHHS/100213 Amendment #1

Page 30f 3



Client#: 525807

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

GENESBEH

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
8/05/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONIACT
USI Insurance Services LLC PHONE " 603 625-1100 ‘ m)é Nok:
PO Box 6360 E-MAIL

ADDRESS:

Manchester, NH 03108-6360

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

603 625-1100 INSURER A : Ace American Insurance Company 22667
INSURED :

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. :::3::: AIM Mutual Insurance Company 33758

dba Genesis Behavioral Health INSURER D :

111 Church Street INSURER E -

Laconia, NH 03246

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

ADDL/SUBR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR |WVD POLICY NUMBER 53#;'8)@555, (r:ﬁk;gm‘ LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY SVRD37803601003 06/26/2013 | 06/26/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PRMG R S e eence) | $250,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $25,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
—\ POLICY ’_I RRO; ’_‘ Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CALH08618574 6/26/2013 | 06/26/2014 FOMBNED SINGLEELMIT | 41,000,000
T ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
T ﬁb'}gg""'ED iﬁ;‘gg“'—ED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| X; HIRED AUTOS AgTos 0 PROPERTY DAMAGE s
$
A | X UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur (X00G25516540003 6/26/2013|06/26/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $4,000,000
oep | X/ RerenTion 10000 s
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION s [ECC60040002452013A  05/28/2013 05/28/2014 X |53 0is | [67
e Bl | O EL. cxci accivenT___|5500,000
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
gég%gféﬁgﬁ lgg OPERATIONS below : E.L. DISEASE - PoLicy LMIT | $500,000
A |Professional }OGL62551 663A 06/26/2013|06/26/2014 $5,000,000 Ea. occurr.
1 $7,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
This certificate covers all operations usual and customary to the Insured’s business.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Bureau of Behavioral Health

Attn: Sandy Lawrence:
Contract Management

105 Pleasant Street, Main Bldg, Rm 214S

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E. ootd Do

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1
#510581255/M10359526

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

LCACA
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

GENES-2 OP ID: BP

DATE (MM/DDAYYYY)
04/24/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERﬂ FICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADD]110NAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER Phone: 603-524-4535

CONTACT
NAME:

Melcher & P tt-L i
426 Main Stregt . Fax: 603-528-4442] [, e [ oy
Laconia, NH 03246 ADORESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Cincinnati Insurance Company 10677

INSURED Lakes Region Mental Health :

Center Inc, Mid State Mental INSURER B -

Health Foundation Inc & Lakes INSURER C :

Region Mental Health Found Inc INSURER D :

111 Church Street ]

Laconia, NH 03246 INSURER E :

‘ INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE,NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBI

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MMDDYYYY) | (MMDDYYYY) LIMTS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH O CCURRENCE $
] DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence ) $
‘ CLAIMS-MADE |:| OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $
J GENERAL AGGREGATE $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §
POLICY S Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Ea aoogant s
ANY AUTO BCDILY INJURY (Perperson) | $
| ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per acadent)| $
_ NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION § 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS R
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D N7A
{Mandatory in NH) E L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE| $
If yes, descnibe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
A [D&O Liability BCP-0002232 07/01/2011 | 07/01/2014 |Aggregate 3,000,000
A [Employ Prac Liab BCP-0002232 07/01/2011 | 07/01/2014 |Aggregate 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Addlitional Remarks Schedule, If more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

STATE-2

State of New Hampshire

Dept If Health & Human Srvcs
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

T W e Vi

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and AfTiliate
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KBS

Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Certified Public Accountants

Vermont License # 167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis.Behavioral Health and AfTiliate

We have audited the accompanying consolidating statement of financial position of Lakes Region Mental Health
Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health (a nonprofit organization) and its affiliate Mid State Mental Health
Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2012, and the related consolidating statements of activities and cash flows for the year
then ended. These consolidating financial statements are the responsibility of the Lakes Region Mental Health
Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health (a nonprofit organization) and its affiliate Mid State Mental Health
Foundation, Inc.'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidating financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidating financial statéments are free of material misstaterent. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidating financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidating financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Lakes Regioh Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and its affiliate Mid
State Mental Health Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in its financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 30, 2012 on our
consideration of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

154 North Main Strest. St. Albans. Vermont 06478 | P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 | F 802.5624.9533

www.kbscpa.com



To the Board of Directors
of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral [Health and Affiliate
Page 2

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements taken as a whole. The
supplementary information on pages 11 through 14 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying acounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with audit standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.,

Kiﬂ"iU ?244«7«» 4}{;?‘  7

St. Albans, Vermont
Aupust 30,2012




Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Investments

Accounts receivable (net of $337,000 allowance)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Due from affiliated organizations

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

OTHER ASSETS
Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Current portion--long-term debt
Due to related organization
Defetred income
Accrued vacation
" Accrued expenses

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Temporarily restricted

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Mid State Consolidating  Consolidated

LRMH Foundation Entries Total
$ 7637 § 236275 § - $ 243912
334,468 569,915 . 904,383
683,053 - - 683,053
33,415 - - 33,415
806,190 -. (806,190) -
1,864,763 806,190 (806,190) . 1,864,763 .
1,469,190 - G 1,469.190
47.452 __® - 47452
$ 3,381,405 § 806,190 $§ (806,190) $ 3,381,405

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 123,148 § = 8 < § 123,148
42,236 - - 42,236
806,190 (806,190) -
18,025 : - 18,025
209,970 - - 209,970
195,101 - 195,101
588,480 806,190 (806,190) 588,480
551,209 - 551,209
1,139,689 806,190 (806,190) 1,139,689
52,673 - - 52,673
2,189,043 - - 2,189,043
2,241,716 - - 2,241,716
$ 3381,405 $ 806,190 § (806,190) $ 3,381,405

See Notes to Financial Statements



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

d/b/a Genesis Bebavioral Health and Affiliate

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES [N NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Public support -
Federal
State of New Hampshire - DBH
Other 'publif support

Total Public Support

Revenues -
Program service fees
Rental income
Investment income (loss)
Other revenue
Net assets released from restriction

Total Revenues

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT
AND REVENUES

EXPENSES

BBH funded program services -
Children Services
Intake
Multi-service
Emergency Scrvices
Housing Services

Non-Eligible

Non-BBH funded program services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, beginning

NET ASSETS, ending

Sce Notes to Financial Statements

LRMH
Temporarily

Unrestricted  Restricted All Mid-State  Consolidating Consolidated

Funds Funds Funds Foundation En__tr_ies Total
$ 161,122 § - 8§ 16,122 § - 8 - § 161,122
8,000 = 8,000 - - 8,000
1,085,284 49,982 1,135,266 - _(822,692) . 312,574
1,254,406 49,982 1,304,388 - (822,692) 481,696
7,308,967 s 7,308,967 - - 7,308,967
62,794 - 68,794 & - 68,794
" (1,054) - (1,054) 24,542 - 23,488
13,039 - 13,039 < . 13,039
10,988 Q0,9848__)_ . = A e
..1,400,734 (10,988) 7,389,746 24,542 - 7,414,288
8,655,140 38,994 8,694,134 24,542 . (822,692) __ 7,895,984
2,270,886 = 2,270,886 ¥ - 2,270,886
206,304 - 206,304 - - 206,304
3,364,812 - 3,364,812 - - 3,364,812
554,244 - 554,244 < - 554,244
192,282 - 192,282 - - 192,282
786,473 - 786,473 - - 786,473
547,526 s 547,526 824,641 _g_82_L692) 549475
7,922,527 - 7,922,527 824,641 (822_,692) 7,924,476
732,613 38,994 771,607 (800,099) - (28,492)
1,456,430 13,679 1,470,109 800,099 - . 2,270,208

$2089043 § 52673 $ 2241716 $ S | - 2,24




Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended Junc 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets ?
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash

provided by operations:

Depreciation
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from affiliated organizations
Restricted Cash

Increase (decrease) in: ‘
Accounts payable & accrued liabilitics
Deferred income
Due to related organizations

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment
Purchase of investments ‘

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ;ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Cash Payments for Intcrest
Debt Incurred for the Purchase of Propety and Equipment

Mid State Consolidating  Consolidated

1.RMH Foundation Entries Total
771,607 $  (800,099) § - (28,492)
154,219 - - 154,219
8,606 (8,589 - 17
(1,505) - - (1,505)
4,775 50 - 4,825
(801,540) o 801,940 -
) - - @
(83,827) - (83,827)
(11,580) - - (11,580)
e 801,940 (801,940) -
40,333, . (6,698) . - 33,635,
(223,051 - - (223,051)
(1,109 (9,768) .. - (16,871)
(230,154) (5,768) - (239,922)
(37,691) - - (37,691)
(227,492) (16,466) - (243,958)
235,129 252,741 - 487,870
7,637 $ 236,275 § - 243,912
29,140 § - $ - 29,140
100,000 $ - § - 100,000

See Notes to Financial Stalements



NOTE |

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTHS TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2012

SUMMARY OF $[GNH?ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. (the Center) d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health is a not-for-

profit corporation, organized under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental
health, and related non-mental health programs; it is exempt from income taxes under Section 501
(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Center qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private
foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Mid State Menta] Health Foundation, Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation organized September 21,
2006 under New Hampshire law. The Center is exempt under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Effective June 30, 2012 the board of Mid State Mental Health Foundation, Inc. voted to immediately
dissolve the corporation and transfer all assets to the Center.

Basis of Presentatic

The consolidating financial statements include the accounts of Lakes Region Mental Health Center,
Inc. (the Center) d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and its affiliate, Mid State Mental Health
Foundation, Inc. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in combination.
This presentation ;is required by the structure of the board of directors of Mid State Mental Health
Foundation whose by-laws require the majority of the board must be comprised of the Center’s board

members.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns (Form 990)
for the years ended June 30, 2009, remain open for potential examination by major tax jurisdictions,
generally for three years after they were filed.

Depreciation
The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements is depreciated over the estimated useful

life of the assets u§mg the straight line method. Estimated useful lives range from 3 to 40 years.

State Grants
The Center receiveés a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the State of

New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health services.

Vacation Pay and Fringe Benefits
Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when eamed by the employee. Fringe bencfits
are allocated to ther appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual time spent on the

programs.

Revenue
Revenue from federal state and other sources is recognized in the period earned.



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Third Party Contractual Arrangements

A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payors. The center receives reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, and other third-
party insurers at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is recorded as
allowances when recorded. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is provided on
outstanding patient receivables at the balance sheet date.

Temporarily Restricted Funds

Specific purpose funds are used to differentiate resources, the use of which is restricted by donors,
from resources of general funds on which the donors place no restriction or that arise as a result of the
operations of the Center for its stated purposes. Specific purpose contributions and other donor-
restricted resources are recorded as additions to temporarily restricted net assets at the time they are
received and as released from restrictions when expended for the purpose for which they were given.
The eamings from these funds will be used to fund operations. For the year ending June 30, 2012
$10,988 was released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on amounts billed for services provided. The allowance for
doubtful accounts in the Center’s estimate of the amount of probably losses in the existing accounts
receivable based on historic trends and the composition of the accounts receivable aging as of June
30,2012.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total costs were $40,014 at June 30, 2012,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consists of the following:

Land, buildings and improvements $ 2,367,872
Computer equibment 744,452
Furniture, ﬁxtdres and equipment 1,513,062
Vehicles 76,688
4,702,074

Accumulated depreciation (3,232,884)
NET BOOK VALUE § 1469,190



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012
NOTE3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients 3 261,956

Receivable from insurance companies 88,237

Medicaid receivables 485,313

Medicare receivables . 96,449

931,955
Allowance for doubtful accounts (337,000

Total Receivable - Trade - 59?2_?55

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

Housing Rent 10,241
LCRS 2,863
HUD 12,790
Grafton County _ 5,750
Belknap County ) 8,550
Mount Prospect Academy 5,200
Town Approptiations 34,500
NFI North, Inc. 1,800
Health First 1,200
Other Grants . 5,204
Total Receivable - Other _ 88,098
TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3 683,053
NOTE 4 LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2012, the Center had available a line of credit with an upper limit of $1,400,000 with a
local area bank. ALl thal date, $-0- had been borrowed against the line of credit. These funds are
available at a variable rate of interest, with a floor no less than 5.5% per annum. This line of credit
expires November 30, 2012, and is secured by all business assets.



NOTE 5

NOTE 6

NOTE 7

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Bchavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

COMMITMENTS

The corporation leases real estate and equipment under various operating leases. Minimum future
rental payments under non cancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2012 for each of the next four
years and in the aggregate are:

June 30, Ariouit
12013 $ 211,927
2014 . 202,417
2015 i 148 867
2016 73.936
2017 1375

Total rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2012, including rent expense for leases with a
remaining term of one year or less was $195,608.

The Center'enetered into a subscription agreement with a software vendor and is obligated to pay
$5,950 per month through May 31, 2016 in exchange for software subscription services. The amount
is included in the above obligations.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Center has the option to make contributions to a defined contribution 403(b) plan on behalf of its
employees. This program covers substantially all full-time émployees. During the year ended June
30, 2012, no such contributions were made.

RESTRICTED CASH

The Center maintains restricted depository accounts. At the balance sheet date the amounts are as
follows:

Rural Developrhent * $ 47,452

* Balance will accumulate per loan agreement to $47,448 at a required monthly deposit of $395.
As of June 30, 2012 this required total had been accumulated.



NOTE 8

NOTE9

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ June 30,2012

LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30, 2012, long-term debt consisted of the following:

5% mortgage note payable - Rural Development duc in monthly aggregate
installments of $3,357 (including principal and interest) secured by land
and buildings through May, 2027. $ 423,776

5% mortgage note payable - Rural Development due in monthly installments
»of $597 (including principal and interest) secured by land and buildings
through December, 2030. -85,983

1% note payable < NH Health and Education Facilities due in monthly
installments of $1,709 (including principal and interest) secured by equipment
83,686

through September, 2016. _—
593,445

Less: Current Portion _gt_1_2.,23§).
$ 551,209,

Expected maturities for the next five years are as follows::

Year Ending
Juned0, =
2013 $ 42,236
2014 43,585
2015 44,994
2016 46,264
2017 31,060
Thereafter 385,306
$ 593,445
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Center receives money under various State and Federal grants. Under the terms of these grants,
the Center is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes specified in the grant
proposal and is subject to compliance reviews and audits by the grantor agencies. It is the opinion of
management that any liability, resulting from future grantor agency audits of completed grant
contracts, would ngt be material in relation to the overall financial statements.
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of amounts invested in various Vanguard Equity and Bond Funds. At June 30,
2012, the statusof these funds were as follows:

LRMH , Mid-State Foundation .

Unrealized Unrealized
Cost. .. Gain(Loss) _ Market Cost Gain (Loss) Market -

Large Blend . $ 65882 § (862) $ 65020 §$ 166,857 $ 17,844 §$ 184,701

Diversified Emerging

Market 19,976 (3,0438) 16,928 - - -
World Stock 63,276 (11,875) 51,401 - - -
Health 27,658 7,022 34,680 76,025 16,396 92,421
Large Growth 54,378 4 54,284 73,080 3,166 76,246
Mid-Cap Value 60,220 9,031 69,251 131,043 (11,749) 119,294
Short-Term Bond 41,267 443 41,710 93,729 3,520 97,249
Cash U L194 . 1,194 4 4

$ 333851 $ 617 $ 334468 $ 540738 $ 29,177 § 569,915

The related unrealized gain (losses) have been included in the investment income fine on the
accompanying statement of activities. Investment income (loss) is as follows:

Mid State
LRMH Foundation Total
Interest and Dividends 3 7,552 3 15,953 § 23,505
Unrealized Gains (Losses) (8,606) 8,589 _ (17)

$  (1,054) § 24542 $ 23,488

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Professional accounting standards require a fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobicrvablc inputs (level 3 measurements). The three lcvels of the fair value hierarchy
under these professional accounting standards are described below:



NOTE 11

NOTE 12

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial instruments for
which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3. Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair iralue.'hierarchy is based on the [owest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value. measurement.

All investments are categorized as Level | and recorded at fair value, as of June 30, 2012. As required
by professional accounting standards, investment assets are classified in their entirety based upon the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Center has evaluated subsequent events
through August 30, 2012, which is the date the financial statement was availabe to be issued. All
events requireing recognition as of June 30, 2012, have been incorporated into the financial
statements herein,
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Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
_ Contractual
Accounts Allowances Accounts
Receivable and Other Receivable
Beginning Discounts Cash End
of Year =~ Gross Fees Given _ Receipts of Year
CLIENT FEES $ 334742 § 1,132,189 § (958,402) § 246,573 § 261,956
BLUE CROSS / BLUE SHIELD: 24,985 319,714 (91,275) 224,304 29,120
MEDICAID 427,083 6,837,711 (989,798) 5,789,683 485,313
MEDICARE 63,554 451,463 (280,731) 137,837 96,449
OTHER INSURANCE _ 62,993 389,259 (192,816) 200,319 59,117
ALLOWANCE FOR
DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS __(355,000) - s - - (337,000)
- $(2,513,022) § 6,598,716 $ 594,955

TOTAL $ 558,357 § 9,130,336



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES, RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Receivable
(Deferred Receivable
Income) BBH (Deferred
From Revenues Income)
BBH Per Audited From
Beginning - Financial Receipts BBH
of Year Statements for Year _ End of Year
CONTRACT YEAR, June 30, 2012 $ -3 8,000 $§  (3,000) § -
Analysis of Receipts
Date of Receipt
quosit Date . Amount _
10/13/11 3 4,565
10/21/11 - 392
10/25/11 780
11/02/11 2,041
11/16/11 3,575
11/28/11 2,070
01/26/12 13,699
01/26/12 2,617
05/22/12 6,000
05/30/12 15,010
06/11/12 1,251
Less: Federal Monies (44,000
$§ 8,000



" Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
dfb/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Total
Agency Admin. Programs Children
Program Service Fees:

Net Client Fee $ 173,787 $ - § 173,787 § 2,547

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 228,439 - 228,439 29,082

Medicaid _ 5,847,913 - 5,847,913 2,819,566

Medicare 170,732 = 170,732 &

Other Insurance 196,443 - 196,443 1,314
Program Sales: .

Service 691,653 - 691,653 -
Public Support - Other:

United Way 364 364 - -

Local/County Government 147,188 = 147,188 -

Donations/Contributions 860,267 40,576 819,691 4,867

Bureau Development 21,625 - 21,625 -

Other Public Support ' 54,233 11,777 42,456 17,600

DCYF ' 1,607 - 1,607 1,607
Federal Funding: '

HUD Grant 133,861 - 133,861 =

Other Federal Grants 27,261 - 27,261 9,958
Rental Income 68,794 - 68,794 -
Investement Income (loss) (1,054) (1,056) 2 1
DBH & DS:

Community Mental Health 8,000 - 8,000 1,570
Other Revenues 13,039 4,394 8,645 1,094
Net Assets Released From Restriction 10,988 10,988 . - -

8,655,140 67,043 8,588,097 2,889,206
Administration . - (67,043) . 67,043 . 22,553

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES § 8655140 $ - § 8655140 § 2,911,759




Housing Services Non BBH
Multi Emergency Apts,. S.L. Apts. S.L. Non Funded
-Service Intake Services McGrath Summer Eligible Programs

s 20,788 § 30,217 § 22413 § - ~ $ 97,822 § -
36,268 33,998 20,408 - = 108,683 -
2,742,731 105,839 99,707 -~ - 80,070 -
114,856 6,676. (86) . - 49,286 =
30,175 20,143 19,324 - - 125,487 -
850 . - - - 19,558 671,245
- < 90,488 w - 56,700 -
6,363 205 1,013 - - 1,053 806,190
21,625 - ~ - - . -
14,829 485 4,970 - - 4414 158
- - - 36,601 97,260 - -
14,773 181 1,089 - - 1,247 13
- - - 37,426 31,368 - -
1 - - - - - -
6,430 - - - . - -
5,535 9 272 - 10 975 750
3,015,224 197,753 259,598 74,027 128,638 . 545,295 1,478,356
23,539 1,544 2,027 578 1,004 4,257 11,541
$ 3,038,763 § 199,297 $ 261,625 74,605 129,642 § 549,552 $ 1,489,897




Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Bchavioral Health and Affiliate
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Total
Agency Administration Programs Children
Personnel Costs:
Salary and wages $ 5120848 S 524,562 $ 4,596,286 § 1,334,908
Employee benefits _ 969,949 121,542 848,407 246,177
Payroll Taxes 360,333 37,152 323,181 95,325
Substitute Staff 147,490 - 147,490 8,392
Client Evaluation/Services 3,879 - 3,879 3,879
PROFESSIONAL FEES AND CONSULTANTS:
Accounting/audit fees 28,335 28,335 - =
Legal fees 12,971 - 12,971 4,506
Other professional fees 18,348 15,342 3,006 =,
Staff Devel, & Training:
Journals & publications 3,286 147 3,139 666
In-Service training 7,207 - 7,207 2,458
Conferences & conventions 12,022 839 11,183 2,239
Other staff development 20,811 2,686 18,125 {6,355)
Occupancy costs:
Rent 84,909 2,544 82,365 28,964
Mortgage (Interest) 26,852 2,954 23,898 8,152
Heating Costs ' 25,156 786 24,370 2,754
Other Utilities 69,983 4,145 65,838 16,643
Maintenance & repairs 89,977 325 89,652 25,662
Consumable Supplies:
Office 29,583 143 29,440 9,901
Building/houschold 16,902 - 16,902 4,461
Medical 229 - 229 .
Other 123,845 9,779 114,066 36,634
Depreciation-Equipment 82,539 6,529 76,010 22,689
Depreciation-Building ' 71,680 4,678 67,002 13,677
Equipment rental 13,058 698 12,360 4,263
Equipment maintenance 21,909 317 21,592 7,360
Advertising 40,015 7,525 32,490 9,732
Printing 605 . 605 - -
Telephone/communications 208,589 8,747 199,842 64,995
Postage/shipping 20,055 157 19,898 6,976
Transportation:
Staff 152,649 1,511 151,138 47,919
Clients 4,285 - 4,285 644
Assist to Individuals:
Client services 37,357 - 37,357 21,353
lasurance: ! )
Malpractice/bonding 22,806 7.661 15,145 5,043
Vehicles 2,566 7" 2,495 364
Comp. Property/liability . 17,438 1,148 16,290 4,068
Membership Duces : 15,761 860 14,901 70
Other Expenditures 36,012 21,981 14,031 2,455
Interest Expensc 3 2,288 2,288 ~ -
7,922,527 816,057 7,106,470 2,036,974
Admin. Allocation \ - (816,057) 816,057 233,912
|
2,270,886

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES% $ 7922527 § - § 7922527 §



Housing Services Non BBH
Emergency Apts. S.L. Apts. S.L. Funded
Multi-Service Intake QfScrvices McGrath Summer Non-Eligible Programs
$ 1,878,261 137,179 § 342999 § 17393 § 40,264 § 482,202 § 363,080
363,210 21,839 68,777 3,465 8,022 76,031 60,886
133,823 9,992 24,866 1,253 2,902 33,252 21,768
92,814 2,673 3,217 - - 32,658 7,736
6,211 195 948 = - 1,094 17
- = - = - - 3,006
1,969 32 120 - - kLY 5
3,475 119 449 - - 660 46
4,798 16 116 ® 100 1,097 2,817
19,847 134 685 - - 88 3,726
38,554 1,580 846 - - 12,392 29
11,949 295 1,875 P » 1,625 2
4,126 100 642 8,846 1314 586 T2
23,715 664 2,994 9,292 8,336 4,194 -
36,529 1,049 4,173 5,079 10,056 6,472 32
14,473 398 1,894 - 200 2,542 32
6,245 195 806 136 3,770 1,246 43
229 - -~ - ‘ - -
52,215 1,57 7,382 » . 9,541 6,723
36,269 1,623 3,989 1,351 4,172 5,896 21
-19,655 1,019 2,724 8,923 17,781 3,206 17
6,051 181 678 - ‘. 1,187 -
10,513 300 1,452 . 120 1,815 32
18,345 7 1,675 - - 2,264 101
92,349 2,614 17,916 300 1,506 17,643 2,519
9,418 340 695 - - 2,430 39
96,057 204 2,483 - 1,791 2,653 31
3,318 27 139 - - 157 -
16,004 - - - - - -
5,132 68 - 689 . - 513 3,700
1,624 15 65 163 163 99 2
5,873 157 : 826 2,229 2,202 932 3
99 3 14 - . 18 14,697
5,071 99 ' 420 4,186 1,161 623 16
3,018,22t 185,054 © 497,154 62,616 109,860 705,463 491,128
346,591 21,250 ‘ 57,090 7,190 12,616 81,010 56,398
T
$ 3364812 % 206304 S _L’ 554,244 ¥ 69,806 § 122,476 % 786,473 § 547,526
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Certified Public Acconntanis

Vermont License # 167

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc,
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and AfTiliate

We have audited the consolidating financial statements of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health (a nonprofit organization) and it’s affiliate as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have
issued our report thereon dated August 30, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting _
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.’s internal control over

financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Lakes Region Mental
Health Center, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do no express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.’s intemal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. |A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstation of the entity’s financial statements will no
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was no designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiences, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial rcpdrting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

154 North Main Street. St. Albans, Vermont 05478 | P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 | F 802.524.9533

www.kbscpa.com
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To the Board of Trustees of
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate
Page 2 |

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.’s consolidating
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

St. Albans, Vermont
August 30, 2012
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Mary Ann Cooney 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Associate : 603-271-6059 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5059

Commissioner Fax:603-271-6139 TDD Access: 1-800-7356-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 24, 2012

Her Excellency, Govemor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council E)/
State House J a) (2 “@QJ\@_Q_
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Requested Action
Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to amend an \Agreement with Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health, 111 Church Street, Laconia, NH 03246, vendor code 154480-B001, by increasing the Price
Limitation by $2,054 from $36,605 to $38,659.00, to provide services to homeless individuals, effective date of
Governor and Council approval, through January 31, 2014. This agreement was originally approved by Governor
and Executive Council on January 16, 2013, Item # 26.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2013 and are anticipated to be available in
State Fiscal Year 2014 upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets, with

authority to adjust amounts if needed and justified between State Fiscal Years.

05-95-95-958310-7176 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, DCBCS BHHS, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Account Class Title
2013 05-95-95-958310-7176 102-500731 Contracts for program services $22,552.00

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALT | AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAMS
|

Fiscal Year Appropriation i Class/Account Class Title

2014 05-95-42-423010- 7927 102-500731 Contracts for program services $16.107.00
‘ Total $38,659.00
Explanation

This agreement provides funds ﬁ’om the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Supportive
Housing Demonstration, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless program. The amendment was
needed due to changes in the HUD allocated budget for this program.

1

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health is one of thirteen New Hampshire
agencies that received a competitive award. The funds shall be used to pay for operations of Summer Street
1



Residence, 13 Summer Street, Liaconia, NH 03246. Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health will provide permanent housing for seven (7) or more individuals at this facility. A
comprehensive supportive services network will be provided to meet their unmet housing needs and to promote
the ability of participants to live more independently. Performance is monitored through the required submission
of quarterly and annual progress reports regarding the performance of the program and the individuals it serves,
as well as ongoing data reporting pn the Homeless Management Information System.

This funding supports the Genesis Summer Street Permanent Housing Program, which provides permanent
housing for seven or more individuals. Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this
request, the project may not be able to continue to operate, causing seven individuals to become homeless. Also,
one full-time staff person and one half-time staff person at this private non-profit agency may become
unemployed.

Area served: Belknap and Grafton Counties.
Source of funds: 100% federal funds.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by: é&:&&(
ic

holas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services Mission is to join communities and families in providing opportunities
Jor citizens to achieve health and independence



New Hampshire Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment 1 to the Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Laconia Contract

This first Amendment to the Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Laconia contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 1" dated this April 12th day of 2013, is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department”) and Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor”), a non-profit organization with a place of business at 111 Church Street,
Laconia, NH.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Govermnor and Executive Council
on January 16™, 2013, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend this agreement by
written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS the HUD grant terms changed to allow for an increase in price limitation;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1) Amendment and modiﬁca‘tion of P-37 “Agreement”;
a) Change Price Limitat(on in Block 1.8 to read $38,659

2) Amendment and modification of Exhibit A
a) IV.A.replace $36,605 with $38,659
b) IV.A.1. replace $35,714 with $37,322
c) IV.A.2. replace $891 with $1,337

3) Amendment and modification of Exhibit B
a) Replace Amount $36,605 with $38,659
b) 4.1 replace $36,605 with $38,659

CA/DHHS/100213 i Amendment #1
Page 10of 3



New Hampshire Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

This amendment shall be efféctive upon the date of Govemnor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Hum jces
7 \ )
4 /2/13 : /
Date /

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Lakes Region Mental Health, inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health

4313

Date

Name:

Title:w Dere o
Acknowledgement:
State of A/ , County of el Enap on Aprifv3,003 peforethe

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that sthe executed this document in the capacity

indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Wi,
M. LACS

W =0CR0 %,
SOF THEE A 2,
- 'L}u/h/%é 3 W NS R

Name and Title of Notary or Justice-af-the-Réace

CA/DHHS/100213 Amendment #1
Page 20of 3



New Hampshire Permanen§ Housing for the Handicapped Homeless Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

224024) 2013 A O Ny,
Date Nanle/V@amne . de, k.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
|
CA/DHHS/100213 Amendment #1

Page30of 3



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Cinde Warmington, do hereby certify that:

1. [am duly elected Clerk of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.,

d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health

. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting

of the Board of Directors of the Corporation duly held on April 23, 2013.

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of
New Hampshire, gcting through its Department of Health and Human
Services, concerning the following matter:

To Provide: Permanent Housing for Handicapped Homeless

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director hereby is authorized on behalf of
this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and qll documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as (s)he may deem
necessary, desirable or appropriate.

. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain

in full force and effect as of April 23, 2013



4. Margaret M. Pritchard is duly elected Executive Director of the Corporation.

(Seal)

-~/
(Corporation) %pﬁ%
v ‘/Q——-z___,

Signature gf)Board Secretary

State of New Hampshire

County of Belknap

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 23rd day of
April, 2013 by Cinde Warmington.

\)mm% [alires

Name: Dawn H. LaCroix
Title: Notary Public

N

) N
it

(Seal)

(Notary Public) Commission Expires:




Client#: 525807

ACORD.  CERTIFICATE OF LIABI

GENESBEH

LITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
4/24/2013

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY QR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an A
the terms and conditions of the policy, certa
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsemerit(s).

DDITIONAL INSURED, the poli

cy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

in policles may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

cWTIC'r

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Svcs of NE, Inc. PAHIt?NNEo £xt): 603 625-1100 &Kxc' Nol:

PO Box 6360 ENAL

Manchester, NH 03108-6360 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE  nacs

LGO:’ 625-1100 isurer A - Ace American Insurance Company 22667

INSURED wsurer 8 : AIM Mutual Insurance Company 33758
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. INSURER G :
dba Genesis Behavioral Health NSURER o:
111 Church Street NSURERE
Laconia, NH 03246 [ sunemr:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIRE
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN,

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
ENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLIGIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

3 _TYPE OF INSURANCE @gﬁi&“‘}{ POLICY NUMBER (DO VYY) [.7%%7#% o LMTs -
D\ | GENERAL LIABILITY SVRD37803601002 06/26/2012|06/26/2013 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY AR IR e nce) | $250,000
| CLAIMS-MADE EI OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $25,000
|| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
P GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
POLICY B9 LoC $
A [ AuTomoBILE LiABILITY CALH08618574 6126/2012(06/26/2013 Fa'asndens o= 41,000,000
X| any AuTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
t :'*UEI.OO;"'NED ‘S\S;‘SES’ULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| X| HIRED AuTOS ASTos P L&c():f&gﬂl})mse $
| $
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur X00G2551654002 6/26/2012| 06/26/201 3 EACH OCCURRENCE 34,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $4,000,000
DED ﬁliasrmorq $10000 $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION o ECC4000245012012 05/28/2012]05/28/2013 X [YGShks [ [OF
Gl = S o [N cL excscenent___|5500,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
H yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LMIT | $500,000
A |Professjonal OGLG2551662A 06/26/2012|06/26/2013 $5,000,000 Ea. occur.
$7,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, if more space is required)
This certificate covers all operations usual and customary to the Insured's business.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER \

CANCELLATION

State of NH, Dept of Health & l-}luman Services
Permanent Housing
for Handicapped Homeless Prpgram

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street §
Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1
#59641520/M7381261

of 1

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Behavioral Health

The mission of Genesis Behavioral Health is to
provide direct services that enhance the
emotional and mental health of our

communities.
(Revised June 2009)

Our Vision

Genesis Behavioral Health is the leading health care provider
recognized for its excellence in delivering accessible, quality mental
health care and support in our communities.

Our Values

RESPECT We conduct our business and provide services with
respect and professionalism.

ADVOCATE We advocate for those we serve through enhanced
collaborations, community relations and political
action.

INTEGRITY We work with integrity and transparency, setting a
moral compass for the agency.

STEWARDS We are effective stewards of our resources for our

clients and our agency’s health.
EXCELLENCE We are committed to excellence in all programming
and services.



The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
DBA GENESIS Behavioral Health

Board of Directors
October 24, 2012

PRESIDENT
Susan Stearns

VICE PRESIDENT
Deborah Pendergast

TREASURER
Cydney Shapleigh-Johnson

SECRETARY
Cinde Warmington
MEMBERS AT LARGE
Elizabeth “Bette” Baker
Lori Boelig
Jack Elzroth
Trudy Fletcher
Jim Hundrieser
Miller Lovett
Edward McFarland
Rae Mello-Andrews

Liz Merry
Carol Pierce
Jennifer Sereni
Matthew Soza
Peter Stewart
Jannine Sutcliffe

Kelley White, MD

HONORARY BOARD MEMBER

Esther Peters



LN

Margaret M. Pritchard

Objective:
Experience:

Education:

Administer programs which aésist disabled people in obtaining or maintaining quality independent life
Current  Genesis Behaviora| Health Laconia, NH
Executive Director ‘

2004-2007 Community Partnefs Dover, NH

Chief Operating Officer, Beﬁavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.

. Oversee day—lo-da){ operations of this non-profit company

. Establish and monikor revenue projections for approximately 17 million dollars worth of business

. Supervise all clinicpl directors of programs

. Participate in all bgard meetings and prepares monthly reports for presentation to the board

. Implemented and maintains a cohesive corporate identity between two previously separate corporations
. Serves on Division committces as needed

. Acting CEO on an as-needed basis

. Advocates politically for the corporation

2001-2004 Community Partners Dover, NH

Chief Operating Officer, Behavioral Health Division

. Responsible for incorporating 7 million dollar CMHC operations into an existing developmental services agency as a result of the

closing of Strafford Guidance Center

2000-2001 Genesis Behavioral Health Laconia, NH
Director, Clinical Operations

. Established multidisciplinary teams and set standards of care

. Monitored vanous ¢ontractor agreements

. Established revenué projections for 5 2 million dollar operations

. Served or both internal and external organization committees

1994-2000 Riverbend CMHC Concord, NH

Director, Community Support Program

. Hire. fire and supervise middle managers and direct care staff (approx 100 staff)

. Established productivity expeetations consistent with budget target of approx 4 million dollars

. Monitored and implemented quality assurance standards to satisfy regulators including NH DBH, Medicaid, Medicare, NHHFA. etc

. Developed policies and procedures

. Established and ensured a full range of services for people with psychiatric disabilities

1992-1994 The Mental Health Center Manchester, NH

Director, Emergency Services

. Managed the 24-hour psychiatric assessments and emergency care Supervised. recruited and trained personnel internal and external to
the departmert

. Liaison to local police hospitals, homeless shelters and refugee center

Emergency Service Clinician

. Provided crisis intetvention, assessments and emergency care to people in acute distress

1987-1989 Community Council Nashua. NH

Director, Community Education

. Developed and implemented agency-wide staff develooment plan

. Submitted grants and responded to RFPs for special projects that assisted the agency in promoting education and prevention services

1986-1989 NE Non-profit Housing Manchester, NH

Social Worker« Property management and general contractor for CDBH/"Mod Rehab” housing projects

. Screened individuals and families for housing assistance through Section 8 and other subsidy programs

. Co-authored HUD grant for 2.5 million dollars for “VVomen in Transition”

. Conducted housing linspections and worked with code department and local authority to assurc compliance standards

1986 Region 1V Agency  Concord, NH

Case Manager .

. Developed and monitored treatment plans for 25 developmentally disabled adults

1982-1985 The Mental Health Center Manchester, NH

Manager: Criscare Care Unit/SRO/Respite Care/Shared Apartment Program

. Supervised and trairied direct care staff in implementing treatment related to independent living skills and community-based living

. Screened and assessed clients for appropriate services and placement.

. Liaison with local hopusing authority and police

Residential Staff i

. Wrote and implemcnted residential service plans for 40 psychiatrically disabled adults.

1998-2000 New England College Henniker, NH

. MS Community Meilal Health Counseling

1977-1981 SUNY Brockport | Brockport. NY

. BS Social Work !

Interests: |1989-Present

Granite State Critical Incident Street Management Team-Coordinator



Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health and Affiliate

CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

106 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Mary Ann Cooney
603-271-56069 1-800-852-3345 Lxt. 5069

Associate
Commissioner Fax: 603-271-6139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
December 7, 20A€PRDVED BY
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan DATE
and the Honorable Council R A7
State House mee 5/ _

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

‘ mME__ L
Requested Action ' B

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to enter into an Agreement with Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health, 111 Church Street, Laconia, NH 03246, vendor code 154480-B001, to provide services to
homeless individuals in an amount not to exceed $36,605.00. This amount represents an award effective
February 1, 2013, or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through January 31, 2014.
Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2013 and are anticipated to be available in
State Fiscal Year 2014 upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets, with
authority to adjust amounts if needed and justified between State Fiscal Years.

05-95-95-958310-7176 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, DCBCS BHHS, HOUSING ~ SHELTER PROGRAMS .

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Objéct Class Title
2013 05-95-95-958310-7176 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $21,350.00

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2014 05-95-42-42301047927 102-500731 Contracts for program services $15,255.00
‘ Total  $36,605.00
Explanation

This agreement provides funds from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Supportive
Housing Demonstration, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless program. The Department of
Housing and Urban Developmerit requires a Continuum of Care process for communities seeking these funds. A
Continuum is a coordinated planning approach to setting priorities for the housing and service needs of homeless
people within a specific area. T]e Continuum includes broad participation of community stakeholders. Through
this process, New Hampshire su%mits an annual application in response to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s Notice of Funding Availability. Once the Notice is announced, the Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services notifies all payticipants in the Continuum to submit project applications. The Department of
Housing and Urban Developmerit scores the application and awards funding based on their criteria. The Bureau
of Homeless and Housing S;.rvices receives notification from the Department of Housing and Urban



Her Excellency, Governor Margparet Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2

Development several months later regarding the awards. The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services shall be
requesting authority to contract with other providers who have also been sclected during this competitive process.

In 1994, with input from providers throughout the country, the Department of Housing and Urban Development
developed the Continuum concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum serves three main
purposes: (1) a strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community; (2) a process to engage
broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness on a year-round basis; and (3) an
opportunity. to. submit an application to the Department of Housing and Urban Development for resources
targeting housing and support services for homeless individuals and families. Although the Continuum is not

- mandated--by law, in order to obtain Department of Housing and Urban Development housing and support

services resources, communities must conduct a Continuum process and submit a Continuum application to the

- Department-of-Housing and Urban Development. This application is the Notice of Funding Availability, which is

described in detail above.

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health is one of thirteen New Hampshire
agencies receiving a competitive award. Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral
Health’s award is $36,605.00. The funds shall be used to pay for operations of Summer Street Residence, 13
Summer Street, Laconia, NH 03246. Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health
will provide permanent housing for seven (7) or more individuals at this facility. A comprehensive supportive
services network will be provided to meet their unmet housing needs and to promote the ability of participants to
live more independently. Performance is monitored through the required submission of quarterly and annual
progress reports regarding the performance of the program and the individuals it serves, as well as ongoing data
reporting on the Homeless Management Information System.

This funding supports the Genesis Summer Street Permanent Housing Program, which provides permanent
housing for seven or more individuals. Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to appreve this
request, the project may not be able to continue to operate, causing seven individuals to become homeless. Also,
one full-time staff person and, one half-time staff person at this private non-profit agency may become
unemployed. :

Area served: Belknap and Grafton Counties.
Source of funds: 100% federal funds.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.
Respectfully submitted, ...

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join conmunities and families in providing
opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ~ ~ ~* "~

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5059 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 50569
Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate
Commissioner

December 7, 2012

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Requested Action

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to enter into an Agreement with Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis
Behavioral Health, 111 Church Street, Laconia, NH 03246, vendor code 154480-B001, to provide services to
homeless individuals in an amount not to exceed $36,605.00. This amount represents an award effective
February 1, 2013, or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through January 31, 2014.
Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2013 and are anticipated to be available in
State Fiscal Year 2014 upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets, with
authority to adjust amounts if needed and justified between State Fiscal Years. /ﬂ&% }C‘@

05-95-95-958310-7176 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, DCBCS BHHS, HOUSING — SHELTER PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2013 05-95-95-958310-7176 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $21,350.00

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title
2014 05-95-42-423010-7927 102-500731 Contracts for program services $15,255.00
Total  $36,605.00
Explanation

This agreement provides funds from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Supportive
Housing Demonstration, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless program. The Department of
Housing and Urban Development requires a Continuum of Care process for communities seeking these funds. A
Continuum is a coordinated planning approach to setting priorities for the housing and service needs of homeless
people within a specific area. The Continuum includes broad participation of community stakeholders. Through
this process, New Hampshire submits an annual application in response to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development’s Notice of Funding Availability. Once the Notice is announced, the Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services notifies all panijbipants in the Continuum to submit project applications. The Department of
Housing and Urban Development é:,cores the application and awards funding based on their criteria. The Bureau
of Homeless and Housing Services receives notification from the Department of Housing and Urban

Ap @
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

Development several months later regarding the awards. The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services shall be

requesting authority to contract with other providers who have also been selected during this competitive process.

In 1994, with input from providers throughout the country, the Department of Housing and Urban Development
developed the Continuum concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum serves three main
purposes: (1) a strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community; (2) a process to engage
broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness on a year-round basis; and (3) an
opportunity to submit an application to the Department of Housing and Urban Development for resources
targeting housing and support services for homeless individuals and families. Although the Continuum is not
mandated by law, in order to obtain Department of Housing and Urban Development housing and support
services resources, communities must conduct a Continuum process and submit a Continuum application to the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. This application is the Notice of Funding Availability, which is
described in detail above.

Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health is one of thirteen New Hampshire
agencies receiving a competitive award. Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral
Health’s award is $36,605.00. The funds shall be used to pay for operations of Summer Street Residence, 13
Summer Street, Laconia, NH 03246. Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health
will provide permanent housing for seven (7) or more individuals at this facility. A comprehensive supportive
services network will be provided to meet their unmet housing needs and to promote the ability of participants to
live more independently. Performance is monitored through the required submission of quarterly and annual
progress reports regarding the performance of the program and the individuals it serves, as well as ongoing data
reporting on the Homeless Manag#ment Information System.

This funding supports the Genesis Summer Street Permanent Housing Program, which provides permanent
housing for seven or more individuals. Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this
request, the project may not be able to continue to operate, causing seven individuals to become homeless. Also,
one full-time staff person and one half-time staff person at this private non-profit agency may become
unemployed.

Area served: Belknap and Grafton Counties.
Source of funds: 100% federal funds.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submiﬁedf,

».

Ma 5Gr
550, 1ssi

Approved by: N -
Nicholas A. Toumpa;

Commissioner

The Department of Healith and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families in providing
opportunities for citizens to uchieve health and independence
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FOR COMMUNITY PLANNINGIAND DEVELOPMENT

December 20, 201 |

Ms. Maureen Ryan
Bureau Administrator
State ol New Hampshire
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH (03301

Dear Ms. Ryan:

Congratulations! [am dehighted to inform you that the homeless assistance
application(s) submitied by your organization in the 2011 McKinney-Vento homeless assistance
competition was selected [or Tunding in the amount of $2,485,829. Enclosed is a list that
contains the name of the individual projects and the project number for each conditionally
selected application.

The Continuum of Care (CoC) Homeless Assistance Program is ain important part of
HUD's mission. CoCs all over the country continue to improve the lives of homeless men,
women and children through their local planning efforts and through the direct housing and
service programs funded in this year's competition. The programs and CoCs funded through the
CoC Homeless Assistance Program continue to illustrate their value by improving
accountability and performance every year. ] commend you on the outstanding work of your
program, and encourage you to continue to strive for excellence in the fight against

homelessness.

Congratulations again on your conditional award. You will be receiving a letter from
your local HUD field office providing more information about finalizing your award. We are

counting on you to use these important resources in a timely and effective manner.
Sincerely,

i

Mercedes Mdrquez

Assistant Secretary

Enclosure(s)

wiv, hud.gov espanol hud.gov f) Q,(’ % \9/
AL
,D/



Iinclosure

NHOOI3BITOO! 104
MeGrath Streel Permanenl Flousing
b 99,632

NHO020BIT001104
Springbrook Condominium Projeet
b 14,154

NHOQOS7CITO0] 102
SCS Shelter Plus Care
245328

NHG053B1T001101
Concord Commmunity Leasing Program
$ 94,500

NHO004B1T001104
Bow/Glen Housing Pragram
$ 68,092

NHOQ015B1T001104
Next Steps Transitional Housing Program
$ 88,497

NHO008B1T001104
Franklin Falls Faom
$ 116,524

NH0014B1T001104
CLMPH I
$ 236,866

NHO003B1T001104
Beaver Lake Lodge
$ 247,279

NH0022B1T001104
Tideview Condos: Permanent Housing for Persons with Disabilities
$ 42,097

NHO0011B1T001104
Homeless Management Information System - Balance of State
$ 79,047 ‘

NHO0019B1T001104
SCS Permanent Housing Project
$ 80,640



NEOO23BITON 04
Flomeless Management Information Systeny - Manchesler
Y 52838

NHOO21BITOOT04
Sullivan County Transitional Housing Program
$ 112,951

NHOO12B1T0O01 104
Homeless Quircach Intervention Prevention Program
$ 357354

NHOOO5CITO01 104
CLM Shelter Plus Care
$ 272,100

NHO0026B1T01 1104
Permanent Housing Program V1 (FIT)
$ 72,590

NH0002B1T001103
Genesis Behavioral Health-Summer Street Project

$ 37,496

NHO007B1T001104
Families in Transition Permanent Housing Program - Concord

$ 71,766

NHO006BIT001104
Families in Transition Concord Community Permanent Housing Program

$ 96,078

Total Awarded: $2,485,829



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
PERMANENT HOUSING FOR THE HANDICAPPED HOMELESS

PROVIDER

Center for Life Management (Beaver Lake Lodge)
Center for Life Management (PH )

Community Partners

Community Services Council of NH

Families in Transition (Concord)

Families in Transition (Concord Community)
Families in Transition (Concord Community Leasing)
Families in Transition (Concord Community Leasing [1)
Families in Transition (PH VI)

Genesis Behavioral Health (McGrath Street)

Genesis Behavioral Health (Summer Street)

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Seacoast Mental Health Center

Southwestern Community Services, Inc,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Total

Amount

$241,391.00
231,226.00
41,095.00
113,750.00
70,057.00
93,865.00
92,250.00
184,038.00
70,862.00
97,260.00
36,605.00
192,112.00
13,817.00
188,813.00
18,720.00

$1,745,861.00



’ FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Perm. Hsg.
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

105 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. H1 Church Street
d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health Laconia, NH 03246
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

Number
(603) 524-1100 05-95-95-958310-71760000- | January 31, 2014 $36,605.00
102-500731
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Ageucy 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603)271-5043
=
1.11 Contrjctor Sig)mture 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
M Susan L.Skarns President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of __Aﬂi, County of [Hﬁrr; macic
/2 \ .

On/ //l L//,b efore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] J//&WM 9/ /OM% R

1.132 Namc and Title bf Notary or Justice of the PeacfZ

MAUREEN A. JOHNSTON, Notary Public
My Commission Expires August 19, 2014

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

//M @%7/ Mary Ann Cooney, Associate Commissioner
2 /al
Cated

1.16 ““Approval by the N.H. Depdftment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:
1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
e ANt e
By: Unne. £ HEAAC, Attarne, on: \F Jec 20/ 2~

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1/(“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and ail obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contradt price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other prostion of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelmes
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be fina) for the State.

Page 20f4 j‘U

Contractor Initials:



»
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™): ‘
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has begn received from
the State or purchased with funds provided:for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the/Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report’t) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contr%ct price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of thé Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of)} the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

I4. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an ainount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Coniractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: 525
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’
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy. ‘

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hamipshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefi.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are mcorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: 5 L—S
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This agreement consists of the following documents: EXHIBITS A, B, C, C1, D, E, F, G, H and J, which
are all incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

L

A.

Services

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing Program, the Contractor shall provide a
permanent housing program that shall serve seven or more homeless individuals with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to permanent
housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD regulations.
The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in Public
Law 102-550, the SHP Desk Guide, and other written HUD policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment goals included
in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

Program Reporting Requirements

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

1. Quarterly Progress Reports: Quarterly progress reports shall include the number of
participating individuals at the end of the quarter, the number of vacancies at the end of the
quarter, the number of individuals who have left the project during the quarter, the number of
new individuals who entered the project during the quarter, the status of Project Activities
performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining Project Activities prior to the
completion Date, and the changes, if any, which need to be made in the Project or Project
Activities. Quarterly reports shall be submitted to the Bureau of Homeless and Housing
Services (BHHS). Quarterly reports are due no later than thirty (30) days after the conclusion
of the quarter.

2. Annual Progress Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an Annual
Progress Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that summarizes the results of the
Project Activities, showing in particular how the Project Activities have been performed. The
Annual Progress Report shall be in the form required or specified by the State.

3. Other Reports as requested by the State.

Al} programs under thig contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data into New

Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH-HMIS). Minimum data elements

required by HUD, including entry/exit dates, must be entered within 14 days of an individual’s

entry into the program. '

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could result in

the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are

confirmed by the BHHS.

1. Contract Administration
A. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings requested by

the BHHS. To the extjent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the need to attend such
meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

Contractor Initials ~3¢S
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. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities and

documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably interfere with
contractor performange.

. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.
. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of the

contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all
questions arising therefrom are resolved, whichever is later.

Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial limitations may
be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the BHHS.

Financial

. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize

$36,605.00 from the HUD Supportive Housing Program, for contract services.
1. $35,714.00 shall be utilized for operating expenses.

(a) Eligible operating costs include maintenance and repairs (maintenance staff, cleaning
supplies, cleaning equipment, contracted services), operations staff (salaries of staff not
delivering services), utilities/fuel, equipment, supplies, insurance (property, car health
benefits for operational staff), food for participants, and furnishings.

(b) Ineligible costs include mortgage payments, rent, recruitment costs, staff training,
depreciation, and costs associated with the organization as a whole rather than the
supportive housing project.

{c) Contract funds may be used to pay for up to seventy-five percent of the actual operating
costs.

2. $891.00 shall be utilized for administrative costs. Administrative costs include costs
associated with the accounting for the use of contract funds, preparing required reports, and
obtaining program audits.

. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations and

policies.
1. Match requirements are to be cash and documented with each payment request.
2. Match requirements cannot be met through in-kind donations of goods and services.

. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and allowable costs

as stated in Section IV, Item A. The Contractor must have written approval from the State prior
to billing for any other expenses.

. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however, the

amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24 CFR
583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access, cleaning,
parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s option.

. The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as match

complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

Contractor Initials S4s5
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
EXHIBIT B

PAYMENT METHOD

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

Program Title: Supportive Housing Program
Amount: $36,605.00

1.

Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for operations, supportive services and administration utilizing funds provided through the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing Program, in an
amount not to exceed Paragraph |.8. of the General Provisions of this Agreement.

. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the
following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with the
regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financial report
shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
“Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions” by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the: satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services and
administration utlllzmg funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
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Development Supportive Housing Project, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless
(Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed Paragraph 1.8 of the General Provisions of this
Agreement. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a monthly basis
and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested
disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide additional financial
information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the Quarterly Reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.
Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR' Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under this
Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services and administration or
reimbursement for expenditures for operations, supportive services and administration, provided
by the Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Supportive Housing Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Supportive Housing Program Regulations,
published at 24 CFR Part 583.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

4.].

The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs up to $36,605.00 as defined by HUD under
the provisions of P.L.. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases or the

creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price. Such
amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval from the State.

4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with

procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1.

5.2.

Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required nonfederal
expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of the
Contractor.

The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with Attachment G
of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system
as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to EXHIBIT B, Section
3.2 of this Agreement.:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under
this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in accordance
with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

3. Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all statutes,
laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights, equal
opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of
1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR Part 107.

4. Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifias as follows:
6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance with
the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing Program

regulations, ahd the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity
Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the Application;
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6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

6.4.5.

6.4.6.

6.4.7.

6.4.8.

6.4.9.
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that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program funds
used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of the
Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the applicable
governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the Application;

that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;

that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed on
the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;
immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or deemed to
be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State Historic
Preservation Officer;

6.4.42. conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

6.4.4.3. conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior’s Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

6.4.4.4. be inconsistent with HUD’s environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or with
the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is available
to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the Contractor intends to
use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to reach persons of any
particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or national origin who may
qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish additional procedures that will
ensure that these persons are made aware of the facility and services;

that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law and
that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development;.

that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements af 24 CFR 841.330(a);

that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42
U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

S. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:
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7.4.

7.5.
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It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent, consultant,
officer, or elected or Appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State that receives
Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions or
responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with ‘whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.

The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors or
subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation are
less than the approved grant.

The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable
time thereafter.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or moderate
rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the homeless for a ten
year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this Agreement.

For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the date
of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional lhousing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the Project
for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of determining the
Contractor’s repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a supportive housing
for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds are
available from the eminent domain ot other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

9.4. Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during the

Contractor’s normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand, the
Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication, publication,

Contractor Initials 5 ¢S
Date 4



Page 4 of 7

translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require the Contractor to
make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this Agreement, or
agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all persons, natural or
fictional, who are controlled by, under cominon ownership with, or an affiliate of, the entity
identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of this Agreement.

9.5. During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain, and
preserve property management, project performance, financial management and reporting
documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data pertinent to the
project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a period of five (5)
years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment by the Contractor,
or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are resolved, whichever
is later.

9.6. Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year
retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or the
Comptroller General -of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the
Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,
as requested, all reconds pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Contractor shall
permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General, collectively or separately,
to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices, materials, payrolls, records of
personnel, data and other information relating to all matters covered in this Agreement.

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement,
including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services
under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
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10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving

services

under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity

including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan,

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal to
the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant provided
to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full force during the
term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:

20.1. DEVELOPMENT

[

20.1.1.

20.1.2.

The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for the
Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1.

20.2.2.

20.2.3.

20.2.4.

The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons for
a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant to
this Contract.

In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.
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20.3.

20.4.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

Page 6 of _7_

. The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in

accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and a
part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs, is
specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion of
the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services required
by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.

The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state that
the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if the
Project is nat used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years following
initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and assigns, heirs,
grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the grant unless HUD
determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as supportive housing for
homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the direct benefit of lower
income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above, are
recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity, for a
Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or, for a
Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the recording of
the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.4.1.

20.4.2.

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to all
persons regardless of religion, and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the

rehabilitation, and
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20.4.3.

20.4.4,

20.4.5.

20.4.6.

20.4.7.
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the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for the
provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of the
leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements of
24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor’s financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may require.
Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation of
the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and maintained for at least three
years of operation with funding under this program.
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EXHIBIT Cl1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1) Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the patties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual prior to
the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2) Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes prior to the
Effective Date of this Agreement.

3) Audit Requirement

The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4} Credits

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Hedlth and Huoman Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services, with funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”
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